

Governor's Off-Road Vehicle Council

Procedural Bylaws

Adopted: May 29, 2014

I. General

These procedural bylaws are intended to guide the operation and organization of the Off-Road Vehicle Council. They are established for the guidance of individual council members, for the guidance of department personnel, and for public information. "council" means Governor's Off-Road Vehicle Council, "department" means Department of Natural Resources.

II. Authority and responsibilities

1. The authority and responsibilities of the council are defined by Wisconsin Statutes, sections 15.09, 15.347(9) and 23.178, supplemented by these procedural bylaws.
2. The off-road vehicle council shall provide advice and make recommendations to the department of natural resources, the department of transportation, the governor, and the legislature on all matters relating to all-terrain vehicle trails and all-terrain vehicle routes, including matters relating to activities conducted on all-terrain vehicle trails and all-terrain vehicle routes by all-terrain vehicle users and utility terrain vehicle users, and shall make recommendations to the department of natural resources with regard to incentive payment requests under s. 23.33(5r) and requests for funding under s. 23.33(9)(b), (bb), and (bg).

III. Organization

A. Membership

The council consists of seven members appointed by the governor for three-year terms expiring March 1. Each member of the off-road vehicle council shall be a resident of this state, shall be a member and represent the interests of an all-terrain vehicle or utility terrain vehicle user's group, and shall be knowledgeable about outdoor recreation issues in this state and about trails used by operators of all-terrain vehicles and utility terrain vehicles.

B. Officers

The council shall have a chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary elected by the council to serve for a period of one calendar year. Officers will be elected at the first meeting of the council each year. Any officer may be reelected for successive terms.

C. Committees

1. Committee of the whole

- a. Shall review items of generally broad concern that are significant and require intensive review of the council as they may affect policy, budgetary commitment, and related matters.
- b. The chairperson of the committee of the whole shall be the duly elected council chairperson or vice-chairperson and its membership shall consist of all council members.

2. Other committees will be appointed as needed on an ad hoc basis

- a. Other specific purpose committees as may be deemed necessary by the chairperson or as established by vote of council members. These ad hoc committees shall have a specific charge listing work products (e.g. findings, a report). Upon meeting the charge and presenting work products to the Committee of the Whole, these committees are terminated unless reappointed.
- b. The chairperson shall make appointments to ad hoc committees.
- c. Ad hoc committees will report as they feel appropriate or at the request of the chairperson.

D. Guest Participants

The council may request specific individuals to attend and participate in meetings in a non-voting status. The intent is to invite participants that may share valuable expertise relevant to issues being considered by the council.

IV. Meetings

A. Time and Place

1. The council shall normally meet at least three times annually. The chairperson of the council shall notify the Secretary of the Department of Natural Resources each time that a meeting has been held by the council. If the Secretary determines on the first day of any year that the council failed to meet at all during the previous year, the council is dissolved.
2. The chairperson of the council shall establish the time and place of the council meetings, unless the council or the chairperson acts under subsection 3 or 4 below.
3. Special meetings may be called by the chairperson and shall be called upon the request of three or more members of the council. The meeting shall be held in Madison unless the council decides that a particular meeting shall be held at some other location. A call for a special meeting shall be directed to the chairperson of the council and contain a statement of matters to be acted upon with pertinent data. The chairperson of the council shall then order such meeting to be held. A special meeting may be held by means of conference telephone when called by the chairperson of the council
4. Upon a determination that a quorum of the council is not available for a meeting, the chairperson may cancel or adjourn the meeting.

B. Agenda

The agenda of matters to be considered by the council shall be prepared by the Department's appointed representative for administrative duties in consultation with the chairperson in the following form and order and delivered or posted to members of the council with supporting papers at least 10 calendar days before the next regularly scheduled meeting, except for emergencies.

1. Approval of minutes of the previous council meeting.
2. Report of the chairperson.
3. DNR representatives' matters.
4. Ad Hoc Committee reports.
5. Council agenda items.
6. Council members' matters.
7. Housekeeping matters.
8. Public comment
9. Other matters that may come before the council.

C. Rules for the conduct of meetings

1. All meetings of the council shall be conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order, Revised; this policy statement; and the open meeting laws, sections 19.81-19.98, Wis. Stats. A majority of the council membership constitutes a quorum (membership consists of those positions currently authorized by statute).
2. All agenda items will be assigned to committees or members of the council by the chairperson in consultation with the secretary for study and recommendation except that the chairperson may elect to present certain items personally.
3. Requests for appearance.
 - a. Requests for appearance shall be made to the chairperson no later than 10 calendar days prior to the meetings. They shall outline the reasons for the request including the subject matter to be discussed and recommendations to be made in as much detail as is feasible prior to the meeting of the council. Those requesting an appearance will be requested to provide council members with copies of written materials to be presented or a written statement of a position. Individual presentations to the council or committees will be limited to five minutes, unless otherwise authorized by the chairperson.
 - b. In emergency or unusual situations, these requirements may be waived by chairperson's suspension of the rules.
4. Council members may bring up any additional matters not submitted by the committees of the council at any regular meeting under the agenda item "Council Members Matters".

V. Authority and responsibility of individual council members

A. General

1. Council members unable to attend a regular meeting of the council may send a non-voting delegate to attend in their place.
2. Interim committee work will be conducted by the assigned ad hoc committees of the council between regular council meetings. The chairperson of each committee shall have the power to conduct meetings and public meetings when necessary. No administrative functions are assigned to members of the council or committees. All acts of individual members and committees of the council between meetings are unofficial and without authority, except as specifically authorized by the council.

B. Specific

The chairperson of the council with concurrence of a majority of council members shall appoint spokesperson(s) to meetings, hearings and sessions as may be deemed necessary. Spokesperson(s) shall represent the views and opinions of the council as a body. Council members may not present themselves as representatives of the council unless they have specific authorization from the majority of the council to do so.

VI. Responsibility of the department

Routine and special reports requested by the council, full record keeping of council meetings disclosing the appearances before and discussion at regular meetings, and a summary of the action of the council and its committees. Meeting arrangements shall also be the responsibility of the Department with time and place being determined in accordance with IV(a)(2).

VII. Revision

Changes to these council procedural bylaws herein may be made if such changes are presented in written form at a regular meeting of the council and approved by a two-thirds majority vote of the authorized members at the next regular meeting of the council.